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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

[

Plaintiff, CIVIL ACTION

NO.
v.

Daniel E. Goodman

Defendants.

60 06 88 S8 20 SC 00 00 00 00 ¢ 9 e

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION
AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

Now comes the Plaintiff, Securities and Exchange Commission
(Commission), and alleges as follows:

1. Defendant Daniel E. Goodman (Goodman) directly and
indirectly, has engaged, and, unless enjoined, will continue to
engage in transactions, acts, practices and courses of business
which constitute and will constitute violations of Sections
17(a) (1), 17(a) (2) and 17(a) (3) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (Securities Act) [15 U.S.C. §§77g(a) (1), 77g(a) (2) and
77g(a) (3)1, Sections 10(b), 15(a) (1), and 15(c) (1) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act) [15
U.S.C. 8§878j(b), 780{(a) (1), and 780(c) (1)] and Rules 10b-5 and

15c1l-2 [17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5 and 240.15cl-2] promulgated
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thereunder.

2. The Commission brings this action to enjoin such
transactions, acts, practices and courses of business pursuant to
Section 20(b) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77t(b)], and
Sections 21(d) and 21(e) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 78u(d)
and 78uf(e)].

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to
Section 22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77v(a)] and
Sections 21(e) and 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 78u(e) and
78aa] . Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Section 22 (a)
of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77v(a)] and Section 27 of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 78aa].

4. Goodman, will, unless enjoined, continue to engage in
the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of business set
forth in this complaint and transactions, acts, practices and
courses of business of similar purport and object.

5. The transactions, acts, practices, and courses of
business constituting the violations herein have occurred within
the jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Florida and elsewhere.

6. Goodman, directly and indirectly, has made use of the
means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce and of the
mails in connection with the transactions, acts, practices and
courses of business alleged herein in the Southern District of
Florida and elsewhere.

7. Pursuant to authority conferred on the Commission by
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Sections 10(b) and 15(c) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 787 (b)
and 780(c)], the Commission has promulgated Rules 10b-5 and 15cl-
2 [17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5 and 240.15c¢1-2], such rules being in
effect at all times mentioned herein and at the present time.

THE DEFENDANT

8. Goodman is a resident of Plantation, Florida and is
currently employed as a sales manager for an environmental
products company in Hallendale, Florida.

9. From at least September 1992 through December 1993 and
at all relevant times herein, Goodman was employed by Junction
Financial Corporation (Junction Financial) and U.S. Ostrich
Corporation (U.S. Ostrich) as their sales manager in connection
with the offer and sale of interests in three ostrich breeding
Florida partnerships promoted by Junction Financial and U.S.
Ostrich and known as Ostrich I General Partnership (Ostrich I),
Ostrich II General Partnership (Ostrich II) and Ostrich III
General Partnership (Ostrich III).

10. In 1990, Kansas and Iowa issued cease and desist orders
against Goodman in connection with the sale of unregistered
gsecurities in a "900 number" venture and an oil and gas venture.
In 1984, Goodman was permanently prohibited from selling
securities in the State of Illinois unless in compliance with the
State’s securities laws.

11. Goodman is not registered with the Commission in any

capacity.
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OSTRICH PARTNERSHIP OFFERINGS

12. Junction Financial was a Florida corporation with its
principal place of business in Hallendale, Florida. Junction
Financial was formed in 1985 to allegedly "develop and promote
innovative commercial programs for exploitation by massed capital
general partnerships." 1In 1990, Junction Financial was the
subject of three regulatory actions by state securities
authorities in Washington, Kansas and North Dakota involving a
900 number telephone service, a vacation and hotel promotion
business and a water purifying venture. The states issued cease
and desist orders against Junction Financial in connection with
the sale of general partnership interests in those ventures.

13. In September 1992, Junction Financial began promoting
Ostrich I, a purported general partnership venture organized for
the purpose of breeding and marketing ostriches. In April 1993,
Junction Financial began promoting Ostrich II, a purported
general partnership venture organized for the purpose of breeding
and marketing ostriches.

14. U.S. Ostrich was a Florida corporation with its
principal place of business in Hallendale, Florida. U.S. Ostrich
shared the same address, principals and business purposes as
Junction Financial. In December 1993, U.S. Ostrich began
promoting Ostrich III, a purported general partnership venture
organized for the purpose of breeding and marketing ostriches.

15. Marcia Josowitz (Josowitz) is a resident of Hallendale,

Florida. Josowitz was the president of Junction Financial and
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the principal agent and president of U.S. Ostrich. Between 1990
and 1993, three cease and desist orders were issued against
Josowitz in connection with the sale of general partnership
interests in Illinois, Vermont and Kansas.

16. Stephen Tashman (Tashman) is a resident of North Miami
Beach, Florida. Tashman was a promoter of Ostrich I and was
intimately involved with the offer and sale of Ostrich I, IT and
ITI on behalf of Junction Financial and U.S. Ostrich.

17. Prior to the offer and sale of interests in Ostrich I,
Tashman was the subject of state regulatory and criminal actions.
On October 3, 1988, Tashman entered a plea of no contest for
committing fraud in the offer and sale of securities while an
officer of Dunn Petroleum, Inc. In addition, between 1984 and
1989, at least five cease and desist orders were issued against
Tashman by the states of New Mexico, Kansas, Florida, Texas,
Massachusetts and Alabama for the sale of unregistered
securities. In November 1987, Tashman was permanently enjoined
from further violations of the Federal Trade Commission Act and
ordered to pay the FTC approximately $12 million in connection
with a fraudulent o0il and gas drilling scheme.

18. From at least September 1992 to December 1993, Ostrich
I, Junction Financial, Tashman, Josowitz and Goodman offered to
sell and sold approximately 3,164 general partnership interests
at $625 per unit in Ostrich I for a total of $1,977,500 to a
total of approximately 622 investors in 48 states, plus the

District of Columbia and Canada.
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19. From at least April 1993 through December 1993,
Junction Financial, Tashman, Josowitz and Goodman offered to sell
and sold approximately 1,940 general partnership units at $625
per unit in Ostrich II General Partnership (Ostrich II) for a
total of $1,211,400 to approximately 512 investors.

20. Throughout December 1993, U.S. Ostrich, Tashman,
Josowitz and Goodman offered to sell and sold approximately 71
general partnership units at $625 per unit in Ostrich III General
Partnership (Ostrich III) for a total of $44,375 to approximately
33 investors.

21. The purported general partnership interests in Ostrich
I, IT and III were, in fact, investment contracts. Investors in
Ostrich I, II and III were passive investors who effectively had
no say in the operations or investment decisions of the
partnership.

22. On December 22, 1993 the Commission filed a complaint
in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida
alleging that Junction Financial, U.S. Ostrich, Tashman and
Josowitz violated Sections 5(a), 5(c), 17(a) (1), 17(a) (2} and
17(a) (3) of the Securities Act and Sections 10(b), 15(a) (1) and
15(c) (1) of the Exchange Act and Rules 10b-5 and 15cl-2
thereunder in connection with the offer and sale of interests in
Ostrich I, II and III in the matter of SEC v. Junction Financial

Corp. et al 93 CV 7082 S.D. Florida. The complaint also alleged

that Ostrich I violated Sections 17(a) (1), 17(a) (2) and 17(a) (3)

of the Securities Act, Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule
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10b-5 thereunder. On December 29, 1993, Junction Financial, U.S.
Ostrich, Tashman and Josowitz were permanently enjoined by
consent from further violations of the federal securities laws in
connection with the offer and sale of interests in Ostrich I, II
and III in the above reference matter. On July 6, 1995, Ostrich
I was permanently enjoined from further violations of the federal
securities laws in the above referenced matter.

GOODMAN’S ROLE IN THE OSTRICH PARTNERSHIP OFFERINGS

23. As Junction Financial’s and U.S. Ostrich’s sales
manager, Goodman oversaw the offer and sale of interests in
Ostrich I, II and III.

24. Junction Financial, U.S. Ostrich, Tashman, Josowitz and
Goodman offered and sold interests in Ostrich I, II and III using
a telephone sales staff in Hallendale, Florida. Junction
Financial and U.S. Ostrich purchased lists of names and addresses
of prospective investors and solicited prospective investors
through an advertisement in USA Today. Cold calls were made to
persons whose names appeared on these lists or who responded to
the solicitations made in USA Today.

25. Goodman assisted Tashman in the preparation of the
Junction Financial and U.S. Ostrich sales scripts used by the
telephone sales staff in connection with the offer and sale of
interests in Ostrich I, II and III.

26. Goodman personally directed the telephone sales staff,
all of whom reported to him, and provided them with the sales

scripts prepared by him and Tashman. Goodman instructed the
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sales staff not to deviate at all from the sales scripts provided
them by Goodman.

27. The sales scripts represented that the purpose of each
partnership was to breed, market and sell ostriches with limited
"down side risk" and "unlimited income potential." The scripts
represented that investors could expect a 50% to 75% return on
their investment in the partnerships from these activities.

28. In reality, investments in Ostrich I, II and III were
gspeculative investments offered by recidivist securities
violators and carried a significant risk that an investor could
lose his entire investment.

29. The sales scripts failed to disclose what a general
partner was, the structure of a general partnership and the
liability of a general partner. The sales scripts also failed to
disclose the regulatory backgrounds of Junction Financial,
Tashman, Josowitz and Goodman as described in paragraphs 10, 12,
15 and 17.

30. Once potential investors were contacted by phone and
indicated an interest, they were sent Junction Financial or U.S.
Ostrich promotional brochures describing Ostrich I, ITI or III.

No determination of the investors’ suitability, business acumen
or sophistication was ever made during these calls or at any time
before an investment was made.

31. Goodman assisted Tashman in preparing the promotional
brochures for Junction Financial and U.S. Ostrich which were used

in connection with the offer and sale of interests in Ostrich I,
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IT and III.

32. These promotional brochures represented that the funds
received from investors would primarily be used to purchase and
maintain ostriches. They failed to disclose that the proceeds of
the offering would instead be used primarily to pay the business
expenses of Junction Financial and U.S. Ostrich and to compensate
Goodman, Tashman, Josowitz and others.

33. These promotional brochures also did not disclose the
regulatory histories of Junction Financial, Tashman, Josowitz or
Goodman as set forth in paragraphs 10, 12, 15 and 17.

34. Goodman also personally offered and sold interests in
Ostrich I, II and III for Junction Financial and U.S. Ostrich to
at least 50 investors.

35. Goodman did not disclose to investors his own
regulatory history as set forth in paragraph 10. He also did not
disclose the regulatory histories of Junction Financial, Tashman
and Josowitz as set forth in paragraphs 12, 15 and 17.

36. Goodman also represented that the funds received from
investors would primarily be used to purchase and maintain
ostriches. He also failed to disclose to investors that the
proceeds of the offering would instead be used primarily to pay
the business expenses of Junction Financial and U.S. Ostrich and
to compensate Goodman, Tashman, Josowitz and others.

37. The proceeds received from investors in Ostrich I and
Ostrich II were deposited into bank accounts in the name of

Junction Financial and used by Junction Financial for, among
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other things, purported loans to the principals of Junction
Financial and others, to reduce Junction Financial’s prior

indebtedness, and to pay salaries and telephone expenses of
Junction Financial.

38. The proceeds received from investors in Ostrich III
were deposited into bank accounts in the name of U.S. Ostrich and
used by U.S. Ostrich, among other things, to pay funds over to
Junction Financial.

39. The proceeds of the Ostrich I, II and III partnerships
were also used by Junction Financial and U.S. Ostrich to
compensate Goodman for his services. Goodman collected a weekly
fixed salary of $950 and received 1% of the total weekly receipts
obtained from all salesmen plus 5% of the total weekly receipts
he personally secured.

40. Goodman also received $300 each week which was
categorized by Junction Financial and U.S. Ostrich as a loan.
However, no note was ever memorialized for this loan nor interest
or payment schedules ever created. In fact, no payments were
ever made by Goodman on this loan.

41. Goodman did not disclose the actual use of proceeds or
his own receipt of funds in the sales scripts and promotional
brochures he prepared. Goodman did not instruct the sales force
for whom he was responsible to disclose these facts, nor did he
disclose these facts when he personally solicited investors in
Ostrich I, II and III.

42. As a result of the foregoing misuse of proceeds,

10
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investors in Ostrich I, II and III lost nearly their entire
investment in the partnerships.

COUNT I
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Violations of Section 17 (a) (1)
of the Securities Act
[15 U.S.C. 77q(a) (1)]

43. Paragraphs 1 through 42 are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

44. From September 1992 to December 1993, Goodman by the
use of the means and instruments of transportation and communica-
tion in interstate commerce and by the use of the mails, directly
and indirectly, in the offer and sale of the securities described
in Paragraphs 1 through 42 above, employed devices, schemes and
artifices to defraud as more fully described in paragraphs 1
through 42 above and 45 below.

45. In the offer and sale of the securities described
above, and as a part of the scheme to defraud, Goodman made
untrue statements of material fact to purchasers and prospective
purchasers and omitted to state to purchasers and prospective
purchasers material facts necessary in order to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they
are made, not misleading, concerning, among other things, the use
of investor proceeds; the regulatory background of Goodman,
Junction Financial, Tashman, and Josowitz; investors’ potential
return on the investment and Goodman’s financial interest in the
Ostrich I, ITI and II offerings.

46. Goodman knew and was reckless in not knowing of the

11
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facts and circumstances described in Paragraphs 43 through 45
above.

47. By reason of the activities described in Paragraphs 43
through 46 above, Goodman violated Section 17(a) (1) of the
Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77g(a) (1)].

COUNT II

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Violations of Sections 17(a) (2) and 17 (a) (3)
of the Securities Act
[15 U.S.C. 77q(a) (2) and 77q(a) (3)]

48. Paragraphs 1 through 42 are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

49. From September 1992 to December 1993, Goodman, in the
offer and sale of the securities described in Paragraphs 1
through 42 above, by the use of the means and instruments of
transportation and communication in interstate commerce and by
the use of the mails, directly and indirectly, obtained money and
property by means of untrue statements of material fact and
omissions to state material facts necessary in order to make the
statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; and engaged in transactions,
practices and courses of business which operated as a fraud and
deceit upon purchasers and prospective purchasers of such
securities, all as more fully described in Paragraphs 1 through
42 and 45 above.

50. By reason of the activities described in Paragraphs 48

through 49 above, Goodman violated Sections 17(a) (2) and 17{(a) (3)

12
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of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77g(a) (2) and 77g(a) (3)].
COUNT ITI
THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5
[17 CFR 240.10b-5] promulgated thereunder

51. Paragraphs 1 through 42 are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

52. From September 1992 to December 1993 Goodman, in
connection with the purchase and sale of the securities described
in Paragraphs 1 through 42 above, by the use of the means and
instrumentalities of interstate commerce and of the mails,
directly and indirectly, employed devices, schemes and artifices
to defraud; made untrue statements of material fact and omitted
to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements
made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading; and engaged in acts, practices and courses
of business which operated as a fraud and deceit upon purchasers
and sellers of such securities, all as more fully described in
Paragraphs 1 through 42 and 45 above.

53. Goodman knew and was reckless in not knowing of the
activities described in paragraphs 51 through 52 above.

54. By reason of the activities described in Paragraphs 51
through 53 above, Goodman violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange
Act [15 U.S.C. 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 CFR 240.10b-5]

promulgated thereunder.

13
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COUNT IV
FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation
of Section 15(a) (1) of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. §780(a) (1)

55. Paragraphs 1 through 42 above are hereby realleged and
incorporated herein by reference.

56. During the period September 1992 through December 1993,
Goodman, while acting as a broker, made use of the mails and
other means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce to
effect transactions in, and to induce and attempt to induce the
purchase and sale of securities while not registered as a broker-
dealer in accordance with Section 15(b) of the Exchange Act [15
U.S.C. §780(b)], all as more fully described in paragraphs 1
through 42 and 45 above.

57. By reason of the activities described in paragraphs 55
through 56 above, Goodman violated Section 15(a) (1) of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §780(a) (1)].

COUNT V
FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Violations of Section 15(c) (1) of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. §780(c) and Rule 15cl1-2
[17 C.F.R. 240.15cl1l-2] promulgated thereunder

58. Paragraphs 1 through 42 are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

59. From September 1992 to December 1993, Goodman, while
acting as a broker, by the use of the means and instrumentalities

of interstate commerce and of the mails, effected transactions in

14
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the securities described above by means of acts, practices and
courses of business which operated as a fraud and deceit and by
making untrue statements of material fact and omitting to state
material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading, with knowledge and reasonable grounds to believe that
they are untrue and misleading; all as more fully described in
Paragraphs 1 through 42 and 45 above.

60. Goodman, knew and was reckless in not knowing of the
activities described in paragraphs 58 through 59 above.

61. By reason of the activities described in Paragraphs 58
through 60 above, Goodman violated Section 15(c) of the Exchange
Act [15 U.S.C. 780(c)] and Rule 15c1-2 [17 CFR 240.15c1-2]
promulgated thereunder.

WHEREFORE, the Commission requests that the Court:
I.

Issue findings of fact and conclusions of law that the

Defendant committed the violations herein charged and alleged.
II.

Issue an Order of Permanent Injunction, in the form
consistent with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, enjoining Goodman, his officers, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys and those persons in active concert or
participation with him who receive actual notice of the Order of
Permanent Injunction by personal service or otherwise, and each

of them, from directly or indirectly, in the offer or sale of the

15
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securities of any issuer, by the use of any means or instruments
of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by
the use of the mails, employing any device, scheme or artifice to
defraud.

III.

Issue an Order of Permanent Injunction in the form
consistent with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, enjoining Defendant Goodman, his officers, agents,
servants, employees, attorneys and those persons in active
concert or participation with him who receive actual notice of
the Order of Permanent Injunction by personal service or
otherwise, and each of them, from directly or indirectly, in the
offer or sale of the securities of any issuer, by the use of any
means or instruments of transportation or communication in
interstate commerce or by use of the mails:

A. obtaining money or property by means of any untrue
statement of a material fact or any omission to state a
material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading; or

B. engaging in any transaction, practice or course of
business which operates or would operate as a fraud or
deceit upon purchasers or prospective purchasers of

such securities.

16



Case 0:96-cv-07078-WJZ Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/18/1996 Page 17 of 21

IV.

Issue an Order of Permanent Injunction in a form consistent
with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
enjoining Defendant Goodman, his officers, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys and those persons in active concert or
participation with him who receive actual notice of the Order of
Permanent Injunction by personal service or otherwise, and each
of them, from directly or indirectly, in connection with the
purchase or sale of the securities of any issuer, by the use of
any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the
mails, or of any facility of any national securities exchange:

A. employing any device, scheme or artifice to defraud;

B. making any untrue statement of a material fact or

omitting to state a material fact necessary in order to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which it was made, not misleading; or

c. engaging in any act, practice or course of business

which operates or would operate as a fraud or deceit
upon any person.
V.

Issue an Order of Permanent Injunction in a form consistent
with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
enjoining Defendant Goodman, his officers, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys and those persons in active concert or
participation with him who receive actual notice of the Order of

Permanent Injunction by personal service or otherwise, and each

17
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of them from, while acting as a broker or dealer, by the use of
the mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce,
effecting transactions in, or inducing or attempting to induce
the purchase or sale of any security unless and until they are
registered as a broker-dealer in accordance with Section 15(b) of
the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 78o0(b)].

VI.

Issue an Order of Permanent Injunction in a form consistent
with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
enjoining Defendant Goodman, his officers, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys and those persons in active concert or
participation with him who receive actual notice of the Order of
Permanent Injunction by personal service or otherwise, and each
of them from, while acting as a broker or dealer, by the use of
the mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce,
effecting transactions in, or inducing or attempting to induce
the purchase or sale of any security, by means of any act,
practice or course of business which operates or would operate as
a fraud or deceit upon any person, or making any untrue statement
of a material fact, or omitting to state a material fact
necessary, in order to make the statements made, in the light of
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading,
with knowledge or reasonable grounds to believe that such

statements were untrue or misleading.

18
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VII.

Issue an Order requiring Goodman to disgorge any and all

ill-gotten gains, including prejudgment interest.
VIII.

With regard to the Goodman’s violative acts, practices and
courses of business set forth herein, which occurred on or after
October 15, 1990, issue an order imposing upon him appropriate
civil penalties pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act
[15 U.S.C. 77(t) (d)] and Section 21(d) (3) of the Exchange Act [15
U.S.C. 78(u) (d) (3)].

IX.

Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the
principals of equity and the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in
order to implement and carry out the terms of all orders and
decrees that may be entered or to entertain any suitable applica-
tion or motion for additional relief within the jurisdiction of

this Court.

19



Case 0:96-cv-07078-WJZ Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/18/1996 Page 20 of 21

X.

Grant Orders for such further relief as the Court may deem

appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

T | L. (»D
'Tlm L. Warren EL
\( dmw/(/ ?ﬁ ‘/zx}/

Danlel R. Gre egus

o

Margdret A. Kramer

Attorneys for Plaintiff
Securities & Exchange Commission
500 West Madison Street

Chicago, Illinois 60601-2511

(312) 353-7390
DATED: 9~ / 7- 9L

20
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